[PARK CITY |

<

PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MEETING
MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 7, 2023

BOARD MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE: Ruth Gezelius-Chair, Stefanie Wilson, Jennifer
Franklin, Beth Armstrong, John Stafsholt

STAFF: Rebecca Ward, Assistant Planning Director; Lillian Zollinger, City Planner; Jaron
Ehlers, Planning Technician; Mark Harrington, Senior City Attorney

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 5:00 p.m.

Chair Ruth Gezelius called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL

Chair Gezelius noted by roll call the attending Board Members, adding that they
constituted a quorum. She recalled that Board Member Mary Wintzer was excused,

however might join via Zoom.

3. MINUTES APPROVAL

A. Consideration to"Approve the Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes
from June 20,.2023.

MOTION: Board Member John Stafsholt moved to APPROVE the Board of Adjustment
Meeting Minutes from June 20, 2023, as presented. Board Member Beth Armstrong
seconded the motion.

VOTE: The motion passed with the unanimous consent of the Board.

4. STAFE AND BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND DISCLOSURES

Thereawere no Staff or Board Communications or Disclosures.

5. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS

No comments were submitted.



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

6. REGULAR AGENDA

A. Parcels PC-850-2 and PC-850-3 — Variance — The Applicant Requests
a Variance to the Required Lot Size in the Estate Zoning District to
Combine Two Lots to Construct a Single-Family Dwelling. PL-23-
05797.

City Planner, Lillian Zollinger reported that the two parcels involved in this, Variance
request are located on King Road as one travels through and out the back of the“Alice
Claim Subdivision. She presented an aerial view with the parcels highlighted in.green.
She identified an unfinished road that was highlighted in yellow on the aerial view. She
noted the Staff questions outlined in the Staff Report regarding aecess to the Lots. The
applicant provided more information and would provide additional details later in the
meeting. Both Lots are located in the Estate Zoning District and the Sensitive Land
Overlay ("SLO").

Planner Zollinger reported that Parcel PC-850-2 is 1.44 acres insSize and Parcel PC-850-
3is 0.71 acres for a total of 2.15 acres. The applicants were requesting to combine both
Lots because they are separately substandard.in the Estate Zoning District. A Variance
was requested because even when combined, the single Lot will be substandard. She
noted that Parcel PC 850-2 complies with the Lot Width requirement for the Estate Zoning
District; however, by itself, Parcel 850-3 does nat'’comply. If the Board of Adjustment
grants the Variance, the Applicants will still be required to record a Plat to create a single
Lot. The Applicants will also be required to confirm and prove access to the Lot and will
be required to perform a Sensitive LandOverlay analysis. As detailed in the Staff Report,
Planner Zollinger noted the concern.expressed about Steep Slopes and indicated that it
would be addressed in future approyals.

Staff recommended thatsthe Board of Adjustment review the proposal, open a public
hearing, and direct Staffito draft a Final Action Letter for approval or denial, and return
with Findings on December 12, 2023. A representative for the Applicants was present to
respond to questions.

Board Member Wilson mentioned that the Staff Report states that the Lots are
developableuntil they are moved into the Estate Zone. She asked what the prior zoning
was for these parcels. Planner Zollinger was not sure of the prior zoning but whatever
zone the parcels were in previously did not have a three-acre lot size requirement. Board
Member Wilson asked if the parcels were zoned for residential lots. Planner Zollinger
could not provide an answer.

Board Member Stafsholt noted the reference in the Staff Report that the parcels were
never noticed, and the change occurred around 1981. He observed that this was a claim
made by the Applicants without historical documentation. Board Member Wilson
mentioned the Applicants’ claim that the Lots were largely surrounded by land that could
not be built on; however, when she pulled up the zoning map, the surrounding area



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

appeared to be Estate zoned. She asked if the property could potentially be subdivided
and used to build homes on three-acre lots. Planner Zollinger stated that was possible,
but it would depend on which parcel is being referenced. The closest Subdivision is Alice
Claim, which has subdivided lots. Board Member Wilson noted that the land to the north
and south of the parcels is zoned Estate and wondered if it could be developed. Planner
Zollinger responded that if the surrounding lots are three acres in size, they would be
developable.

Board Member Stafsholt noted that the Applicants stated that the lots around them-are
not developable, so they would not be able to add to the 2.15 acres to 3-acres. He'noted
that to the southwest and the south if they were zoned Estate, he did not'see why that
would be the case unless there are Steep Slopes. Chair Gezelius@asked.about the slope.
While the information states that there is a slope there is no more specific information
defining it.

Nick Frost identified himself as an attorney in Park City who represented the Applicants,
Kathy Dubie and Kerry Spalding, who are cousins. Each ownstheir respective parcels.
The first time he appeared before a municipal body was a Board of Adjustment Meeting
in Michigan. He described his experience. Mr. Frost provided history related to the
parcels and presented a graphic showing the'family tree of ownership and chain of title.
He reported that Maggie Barnicott came to the United States from Switzerland, and her
husband, Charles, was from England. Ms. Barnicott originally procured the Alice Claim
and he provided for the Staff Report the 1903 letter regarding that Claim. The Barnicotts
had six children, one of whom was Della Rhea. Della Rhea had three daughters, Marjorie,
Bonnie, and Ina. Ina sold her interest inithe Claim to Marjorie. He noted that both Marjorie
and Bonnie have daughters, Kathy ‘and Kerry, whom he represents.

Mr. Frost reported that George Westervelt drafted the 1903 letter to Maggie Barnicott.
Mr. Westervelt is a Salt Lake City and Park City attorney whose law partner is Lee White,
who also served as CitysAttorney for a time. With regard to the Variance request, Mr.
Frost stated that it.was a request for equity. Specifically, for this meeting, they were
looking at the density issue. In addition to access, Steep Slope, and Sensitive Land
Overlay requirements, the land likely had contaminated soils and other issues they would
face down the road. However, they had done quite a bit of research and the family kept
meticulous records of these Parcels so they have a strong reasonable belief that they
would be able to satisfy these requirements.

Mr. Frost explained that the Alice Claim Subdivision was a very extensive project that
went through a lot of approvals. For this Variance request, the Applicants would likely
acquiesce to the same Conditions of Approval and would cross those bridges when they
got to them. He next addressed the Variance elements and reiterated that this was a
request for equity. He praised Planner Zollinger’s statements in the Staff Report that laid
out the elements required to be satisfied for a Variance. He stated the Applicants’
responses to satisfy the elements were honest and thoughtful.



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

Mr. Frost stated that a recurring idea is equity and each of the Applicants’ responses
centered on the owners being able to use the land that had been in the family for a long
time. He had been involved in a number of Variance requests and acknowledged that
some are harder than others. The hardest element to satisfy was that “substantial justice
is being performed.” He noted that the more difficult requests are those seeking an
oversized hot tub in a Setback or building a home that is six to seven feet higher than
those around it. With those types of requests, it is more difficult to argue “substantial
justice.” He felt that in this instance, substantial justice was self-evident because this
family is simply trying to use their land.

Mr. Frost addressed the questions about the land that surrounds the parcels. One of the
first things they did was look at the surrounding land to see if they“could, carve off some
portion of land from either the south or the west. The land to the'immediate east is open
space owned by Alice Claim Subdivision, as is the land immediately to the north. Talisker
Land Holding Company owns the land to the north, which is a platted Lot. He commented
that it might have been part of the Flagstaff Agreement and is not developable. In any
event, the Applicants had not been able to contact the ewners 10 determine if they were
interested in selling it. Talisker also owns property in the area being held as Mining
Claims, which generally do not show up on land use maps. Even if they were able to
carve some of that land, the Applicants expressed concern as to whether it would be
recognized by the City as developable land. Based on the Flagstaff Agreement, he
believed that it would likely not be developable. He believed that based on the research
and discussion it was not probable that the, Applicants could purchase any of the
surrounding land.

With regard to prior zoning, Mr. Frost reported that the research pointed to this land being
previously zoned Historic Residential-1 (“‘HR-1”). The Applicants would prefer the land
remain Estate, as opposed to rezoning. One reason was that Estate zoning requirements
are more stringent. The 4and would also be next to another Estate zone, which is one of
the Lots in Alice Claim¢# The two parcels would, therefore, be consistent with one another.
Mr. Frost reiterated, that the request was for density. He recognized that an approval
tonight would not stand“on its own and would be subject to numerous subsequent
approvals. Theyshoped for the opportunity to go before the City and work with Staff to
see if something could be done with this land. He opined that at the very least, they could
satisfy the requirements for a Variance and requested the Board consider granting the
request.

Board Member Stafsholt asked Mr. Frost to expand on the statements regarding the
zoning change in the 1980s. Mr. Frost stated that based on the research, the land was
zoned HR-1 in 1981. They found an Ordinance that became effective in January 1984
that changed that to the Estate zone. He stated that no one in the family had
documentation or notifications of that zoning change and stressed that the family kept
meticulous records dating back to the early 1900s.



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

Mr. Frost added that Summit County recognized “Lot of Record” status based on equity
principles. That means that if a lot were created in the previous zoning before a specific
date, it would retain the previous zoning even after subsequent zoning. He mentioned
for illustrative purposes that most of the Lots around the Old Ranch Road area were much
smaller than 20 acres but considered Lots of Record that they enjoy whatever zoning they
had when they were created.

With regard to the Applicants’ request for equity, Board Member Stafsholt highlighted the
point that the zoning was changed 39 years ago but not brought up until now despite-the
fact that a lot of improvements had occurred. He noted that the Applicants were now
looking to possibly benefit from those improvements that occurred over the last 17 years.
He added that he was pretty familiar with Alice Claim.

Mr. Frost could not speak to why they did not build something 30 to 40 years ago, adding
that the property stayed in the same family and were not remnant parcels nor a situation
the Applicants created. He recognized that someone would have to be the last to build,
and they were not trying to take advantage of Alice Claim. To the extent they could
cooperate and pay for part of those improvements that could be done as well.

Board Member Wilson referenced the survey provided by the Applicants that showed the
owners of the Lots around the parcels and it appeared that King Development Group
owned the Lot to the north. She referenced the language regarding No Disturbance and
asked if that was dedicated Open Space required of the Alice Claim developer. Mr. Frost
agreed that was his understanding. "He anticipated that the City would require the same
for the Applicants’ Lots and would designate the Building Envelope in order to restrict the
remaining space to be neither buildable nor developable.

With regard to the land to the south,/Board Member Wilson noted it appeared to be Mining
Claims, and she assumed. that land was not usable. Mr. Frost confirmed that was his
understanding based.onithe research. In response to Board Member Wilson'’s inquiry
regarding the 1981.Zoning Map, Mr. Frost stated he had the Zoning Map and could send
it to the Board.

Board Member Stafsholt stated that history was a big part of Applicants’ presentation,
and it sounded as though the family owned the Alice Claim Mine. Mr. Frost confirmed
that the family'owns the Mining Claim. Board Member Stafsholt understood that the family
sold off.the other piece that is currently owned by King Development. Mr. Frost confirmed
and stated that he included some of those deeds in their report. He also confirmed the
family. sold off the piece that was now the Alice Claim Subdivision and kept this piece.

Board Member Stafsholt noted that the family kept meticulous records during the 17 years
of contentious discussions and the extensive remediation at Alice Claim but did not raise
this issue until now. He pointed out that the family owned the piece that is now the Alice
Claim Subdivision, and they could have worked with the owner to do this subdivision and
have developable Lots throughout that period. He noted it was a very public situation for



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

a very long time. Mr. Frost was aware of the situation and stated that it took place in the
early 1980s when the family kept the parcels and sold the remainder of the land. He
stressed that it was not a recent event, and it would have been the Applicants’ mothers
who would have been involved in those events. He further explained that during the
1970s that area was still being discussed and it was contentious for other reasons. He
did not believe they were part of the Alice Claim Subdivision, nor did the developer
approach them. He questioned whether the Applicants’ mothers had the opportunity to
participate.

Board Member Stafsholt noted that after 17 years, the Alice Claim approvals came in
2022 for the nine Lots and the four Open Space parcels. Mr. Frost 'stated, the records
showed that that took place in 1981 and the Applicants had notstried to develop these
parcels. He was confident that the Applicants were not approached about developing
these parcels and did not believe there was an opportunity to join.« Board Member
Stafsholt noted the 14 years of soil work done on the other lands and asked if any soil
work had been done on these parcels. Mr. Frost did not think any soil work had been
done, but he recognized the extent of the soil work on Alice Claim and the Applicants
recognized what would be needed on these parcels. He neted, however, that that would
be addressed as part of future approvals.

In response to an inquiry regarding when the Applicants became the owners of these
parcels, Mr. Frost did not have the information with him. He stated one of them was in
Marjorie’s Trust and he assumed that Applicant:Spalding would have become the Trustee
upon Marjorie’s death. He guessed that probably occurred in the 1990s or early 2000s
and it was likely the same with Applicant Dubie.

Board Member Franklin noted the.screen was showing various maps and asked for
clarification on those boundary'lines. She also noted that page 42 of the Packet showed
the slope analysis, whichushe felt connected to the questions regarding the slope. She
requested some clarification of the location of the parcels on page 42 of the Packet.
Mr. Frost stated that page 42 was the Alice Claim Slope Map taken from the Staff Reports
for that project. He pointed to the approximate location of the Lots on the presented
image.

Planner Zollinger presented the 1981 Zoning Map and pointed out the approximate
locations of the parcels and the zoning designations. She stated the belief was that prior
to thisttime, it was zoned Forest Estate and changed over to Estate in 1981. She also
presented the current zoning map that showed the current HR-1 boundary, which includes
part of the Alice Claim Subdivision.

Chair Gezelius recalled the action to create the Estate Zone on Steep Slopes at the higher
elevations in Old Town in the 1980s and noted there was great concern about the scale
of development moving up the mountain. She mentioned avalanche, runoff, access, and
density, and stated there was great concern regarding moving the HR-1 zoning up the
hill, given the density that existed in the valley of Old Town. She added that at that time,



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

it was deemed desirable to create a three-acre minimum in the Estate Zone to preclude
that level of development on the hillsides in the Historic District.

Board Member Stafsholt added that the final Alice Claim Subdivision started out quite
differently than the ultimate nine Lots and four Open Space parcels that were approved.
He stated it began as a mini-Park Meadows, and echoed Chair Gezelius' comments
regarding the concerns about geotechnical, geophysical, runoff, and the like. He stated
that Alice Claim turned out to be more of an HR-1 with one parcel that is three,acres. He
stressed that was not the development that King Development had in mind in=the
beginning.

There was discussion about potentially going back to the previous'zening, and Mr. Frost
stated the legal possibility might exist, however, it was not something they had explored.
He stated the Applicants were not trying to force a right; rather, this application was a plea
for equity. He added that Summit County had that equitable principle built into its Code
that he outlined for illustrative purposes only.

Board Member Wilson noted the comment that Applicants would rather have it zoned
Estate because it was more stringent. She wondered if there was an option. Mr. Frost
stated that the comment was made as opposed to irying to rezone the property to
something else or to call it back to HR-1. ,He stressed the Applicants were not trying to
rezone the property and noted they just wanted to build one residence on the property if
approved.

Chair Gezelius opened the public hearing.

Assistant Planning Director, Rebecca Ward reported that there were participants online
who wished to speak. Chair Gezelius acknowledged that those on Zoom could provide
their comments.

Kerry Spalding clarified that her mother lives in Indiana and is very far from the property.
When she inherited thesland, she had no idea what was going on with the surrounding
area. Inresponse to.comments as to why they waited so long, she stated she was never
approached by anyone about the property and had no idea what was going on with the
Alice Claim Subdivision. She stated that Kathy Dubie was in the same boat. Speaker
Spalding reported that she lives in lllinois and Ms. Dubie lives in Indiana.

There'was no further public comment. The public hearing was closed.

Chair Gezelius stated that Staff was looking for direction regarding either denial or
approval of the Variance, or whether further information was needed. She noted the
Packet did not include Conclusions of Law or Conditions of Approval, and those would be
provided in a subsequent meeting. She suggested the Board move through the five
criteria they must find to be in harmony with the request in order to grant the Variance.



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

She invited Board Member Armstrong to provide her thoughts and conclusions on the first
criterion.

Board Member Armstrong stated that based on the first criterion, unreasonable hardship,
she believed that a hardship exists when someone owns the property and never received
information on changes being made. She felt that if someone does not live here and no
one advises of the changes, then the owner would have no way of knowing about these
changes, which created a hardship.

Board Member Franklin was torn on the information provided to the Board.because'there
appeared to be some gaps in information. Coming into this, she did not feel'that the
request met the hardship criterion; however, she was concerned about seome of the things
they discussed during this meeting.

Board Member Wilson felt the Applicants met the hardship'requirement. She added that
private property rights were something she believed in, and the Applicants should be able
to gain value from their property by developing it. She clarified that this did not necessarily
indicate how she would vote, but for this particular criterion, she felt there was a hardship
for the Applicants to not be able to utilize their property.

Board Member Stafsholt agreed there was a hardship to the Applicants. He also stated
that notification had never stood up and' added that he was currently working on two
matters on which he was never notified as an‘individual owner within 300 feet, but it did
not seem to hold up.

Chair Gezelius commented that while the City had responsibility for notice, the individual
property owner also had a responsibility to follow up and pay attention to what was
happening with their real estate investment. She did not believe there was any way to
ascertain accurately whether notice was attempted, not delivered, not provided, or not
read or processed. She'felt itwas a moot point. She stressed that the fact was that the
property was changed to Estate zoning with a three-acre minimum 40 years ago in order
to stop and limit the development of small parcels of land on these sensitive hillsides and
Steep SlopesShe added that many people would call these inaccessible properties.

With regard“io the second criterion, which is special circumstances attached to this
property that do not generally apply to properties in the same zone, Board Member
Stafsholt expressed that all the properties in the same zone had the same circumstances
applied. In this case, he did not feel there were special circumstances for these two Lots
compared to anything else in the Estate Zone.

Board Member Wilson assumed that when the Estate Zone was created, it was
subsequently subdivided into three-acre parcels. Planner Zollinger stated that parcels
exist and then as the City acquires them zoning designations were assigned or changed.
Board Member Wilson asked if there were individual parcels of less than three acres that
were combined. Planner Zollinger did not know, but stated they would have to go through



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

a Plat to combine Lots to create three acres. She confirmed that all of the other parcels
surrounding these parcels were three acres or more. Board Member Wilson considered
this to be a special circumstance.

Board Member Franklin commented that it appeared that the parcels surrounding the
Applicants’ parcels had a variety of different uses and zones, and because of that, she
was torn on the special circumstance criterion. Board Member Armstrong felt that.the
Applicants did not meet the second criterion.

Chair Gezelius then addressed the third criterion, which was that the Variance must be
granted for the owner to have essential enjoyment of their property as pessessed by
properties in the same zone. Board Member Armstrong offered“that'a Variance was
necessary for the Applicants to have proper enjoyment and use of the land. Board
Members Franklin, Wilson, and Stafsholt all concurred with Board Member Armstrong
that this application met the third criterion.

The fourth criterion was whether the Variance would substantially affect the General Plan
and would not be contrary to the public interest. Board Member Stafsholt was torn on this
issue because this property was beyond where.they have any improved roads, and it
would be beyond what was already approved for Alice Claim. He stressed that they would
also have to address new roads, new ;snow remeval, new maintenance, and new
infrastructure, which ultimately is paid for by the public. He stated that on one level, it
was contrary to public interest. Open Space also surrounds the parcels on three sides,
so there would be wildlife encroachment, as well as the Sensitive Land Overlay. He also
noted the potential for fire would be increased. Board Member Stafsholt did not believe
the application met the fourth criterion but was torn.

Board Member Wilson asked if there were City plans to complete the road. Mr. Frost
explained it is private preperty and an easement was reserved when his clients deeded
their interest in Alice Claim. It was anticipated to be a private drive maintained by the
homeowners, and to'the extent possible the Applicants would pay for installation costs,
etc. so as not to burdentthe City.

Board Member Wilson assumed the proper Impact Fees would be paid for fire and other
issues. Shewopined that this proposal did not affect the General Plan and she did not
believe it was contrary to the public interest. The fact that Open Space surrounded the
property.would allow it to essentially maintain the three-acre requirement.

Board Member Franklin felt that both of the preceding comments raised great points. She
appreciated the Applicants’ position of staying within the Estate zoning requirements.
She also respected how it was zoned on behalf of the public interest so they would not
have HR-1 density in that area.

Board Member Armstrong did not find this to be any different than in any other
neighborhood. She stated she resides in Aspen Springs, and they have a road that must



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

be plowed by the City due to the number of houses. She could not see that it was contrary
to the public interest; rather, that was just the way it is in Park City. She opined that
Applicants met the fourth criterion.

Chair Gezelius noted that the proposal would have a serious impact on the public. It
would affect the visual Open Space, and it might or might not require avalanche
mitigation. Additionally, because the land was in a heavy snow area, it might require a
great deal of snow removal down a very narrow street. She stated that.it, would be
extremely expensive to provide police, fire, sewer, storm drains, or general/services'to'an
isolated property. She felt it affected the general public to allow construetion of anything
on this substandard parcel.

Chair Gezelius next turned to the fifth criterion—that the spirit of the Land Management
Code was observed, and substantial justice is done. Board Member Franklin felt this
criterion was more difficult and noted that of all the issues‘they look at this is the largest
gray area. She felt that all were looking at this with the spirit of the Land Management
Code and best intent for the City and the community.

Board Member Armstrong opined that the request met the fifth criterion. Board Member
Wilson also felt it met the fifth criterion. She/noted the,Land Management Code zoned
this property as Estate, with the intention,that parcels could be developed with homes.
Since Open Space surrounded these parcels, they'would have an area of approximately
five acres with a single residence. When it came to substantial justice, Board Member
Wilson felt that owning a family heirloom property that is essentially worthless is not just.

Board Member Stafsholt commented that a Variance would likely meet the spirit of the
Land Management Code, so he felt.this application met the fifth requirement.

Chair Gezelius stated thesBoard provided input on all five criteria and the Board must find
that an application met-all five in order to approve a Variance. She stated that Staff
requested direction, from the Board in terms of preparing Conditions of Approval and
referenced page 19 of the Packet. The Board could deny the Variance and direct Staff
to prepare Findings for a denial. They could also continue the discussion and request
additional infermation on specific items. Chair Gezelius stated that there was varying
input on the five criteria.

Board*Member Wilson found the application to meet all five criteria and was inclined to
approve the Variance. Chair Gezelius clarified that they cannot approve the Variance.
The Board can only direct Staff to prepare an approval of the Variance.

Chair Gezelius felt that Board Member Wilson tentatively moved to direct Staff to prepare
an approval of the Variance and asked if there was a second. There was no second.
Chair Gezelius asked if there was a motion to direct Staff to deny the Variance. Board

10



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

Member Stafsholt stated his intention to move to direct Staff to deny the Variance based
on Section 15-10-3, numbers (2) and (4).

Senior City Attorney, Mark Harrington made it clear that Board Member Stafsholt
suggested that because special circumstances and the General Plan are two criteria
where the Board does not meet a three-member consensus, then Staff would prepare
Findings of Fact consistent with those members who did not feel those criteria were met.
He added that if the Board was not clear on that, they could request more discussion on
those two items prior to the vote. He felt the motion was appropriately made and the-first
order of business was whether it would get a second.

Board Member Stafsholt asked if he should move to direct Staff'to,deny the Variance
instead of being specific.  Mr. Harrington stated that Board Member Stafsholt
appropriately referenced the specific criteria, and he wanted to make sure the Board was
clear about the basis for the motion before a second or a request for more discussion.

Board Member Stafsholt mentioned that his motion'was intended to cite the criteria
related to special circumstances and contrary to the publicinterest. Chair Gezelius asked
if there was a second to Board Member Stafsholt’s motion. "The motion died for lack of a
second. Board Member Armstrong recommended another poll because Board Member
Stafsholt’'s motion was based on two criteria that/were not met. She did not agree that
the two criteria were not met. Mr. Harringtoninoted that Board Member Franklin’s position
on three of the five criteria was unclear. \ He also recalled that for the special
circumstances criteria, the poll was 1:-1-2, meaning one in favor, one undecided, and two
against. He mentioned he did not count the Chair's position for this round. For the
General Plan criteria, he recalled that the poll was 2 — 1 — 1. He suggested the Board
have further discussion on thesetwo criteria, and they might persuade Board Member
Franklin to go one way or another,/or they could consolidate the positions to see if they
could reach a consensuss, He added that as pointed out by Chair Gezelius, it would also
be appropriate to request,additional information that might help the Board decide those
two issues.

Board MemberFranklin referenced the special circumstances criteria and stated that the
Applicants’ Statement talked about surrounding land that appeared to not be developable.
The two parcels adjacent to the subject parcels were identified as an Open Space parcel,
while the other was a Non-Disturbance Area (“NDA”) parcel. She noted they have had
experience with land that should not have been disturbed having been disturbed. She
requested clarification of the zoning and the two parcels referenced.

Mr. Frost pulled up the Alice Claim Plat and noted a small triangular section labeled Open
Space, and the rest of that land was Mining Claims that belongs to Talisker Land Holding
Company. He noted there was a corner on the west side of the road that was part of
Open Space Parcel D of the Alice Claim Subdivision. The rest of that land was a Mining
Claim owned by Talisker Land Holding Company.

11



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

Board Member Stafsholt stated it appeared the entire south border of the Lots
represented as Alice Claim Open Space Parcel D was along the dirt road. Mr. Frost
stated that it was all Open Space on the east side of the road. On the south side, there
was a small triangular portion that likely belonged to the Alice Claim, and he suspected
the developer dedicated it as Open Space because it was not buildable. He added that
the bulk of the border on the south side was Mining Claim.

Board Member Wilson referenced her prior question on this and asked if the parcel to the
north, labeled on the graphic with King Development Group, Lot 1 NDA, was required to
be Open Space as part of the Alice Claim Development Agreement..«She understood
based on her prior questions that it was required to be dedicated Open Space as part of
the Development Agreement.

Planner Zollinger presented the Plat. Mr. Harrington believed it referenced the King Road
Subdivision, but it was still dedicated Open Space. Mr. Frost referenced the Alice Claim
Plat and advised that was Lot 1, which was platted as NDA. 'He_believed it was part of
the Development Agreement, but it was not dedicated Open Space; rather, it was private
land owned by Lot 1 and they could not build on that portion. He advised there was a
designated Building Envelope, and the remainder was NDA. Board Member Stafsholt
reported that when they revised the Alice Claim Subdivision, Lot 1 was 3.01 acres.

With regard to the prior comment that this Lotwould'be surrounded by Open Space, Chair
Gezelius stated that this application was required to stand on its own with its substandard
Lot size, and not rely on neighbors or. zoning around it for additional space. The Board
was required to only address the Applicants’ specific parcel, and any limitations on house
size or Setbacks would be the burden of this parcel and not adjacent parcels.

Chair Gezelius asked if Board Member Stafsholt wanted to reiterate the two criteria that
he felt were not met and«that formed the basis for his motion. Board Member Stafsholt
expressed his belief thatithere'were no special circumstances that did not apply to other
properties in the same zone. He did not require any additional information for that
criterion.

With regard to.the public interest criteria, he did not feel a Variance would substantially
affect the” General Plan, other than setting a precedent; however, he felt it would be
contrary te the public interest to extend a road that would end up being maintained at the
public’s,cost. Because the parcels abut Open Space, he felt it would also affect wildlife
and would increase fire danger as compared to what currently exists.

Chair Gezelius again asked if there was a second to Board Member Stafsholt’s motion.
There was no second.

Chair Gezelius stated that the Board is required to take action to continue, grant, or deny

the application. Board Member Armstrong observed that the application could be denied
if only one of the criteria was not met. Chair Gezelius confirmed that the application must

12



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

meet all five criteria to support granting the Variance. Board Member Armstrong
suggested that if the motion were limited to the second criteria, she would second the
motion, but was unsure that all would be in favor.

In response to an inquiry, Mr. Harrington stated that the motion must include specific
findings as it relates to the criteria that were not met.

MOTION: Board Member Stafsholt moved to recommend Staff prepare doeumentation
to DENY the Variance based on Criteria 2 — special circumstances attached to-the
property, set forth in Section 15-10-8.

Board Member Armstrong seconded the motion.

VOTE: Board Member Stafsholt-Aye; Board Member Armstrong-Aye; Board Member
Franklin-Aye; Board Member Wilson-Nay. The motion passed 3-to-1.

Chair Gezelius reported that Staff was directed to prepare a denial of the Variance for
consideration at a subsequent meeting. Mr. Harrington ¢larified that this vote was not
considered Final Action, as Final Action was defined very narrowly. The Board provided
Staff with direction to return with Findings, and once the Board votes on those Findings,
that would be the Final Action. The Boardfeserved the right to change the vote until they
vote on the Final Action Letter.

There was discussion about continuing this item to the next meeting on December 12,
2023. Chair Gezelius noted that in‘order to vote on this item, there would need to be a
guorum comprised of those at this‘meeting. It was noted that Board Member Stafsholt
would be unavailable for the December 12, 2023, meeting.

Chair Gezelius felt that fairness dictates that this item be continued to a meeting when
the four Board Members, present would be able to attend. Assistant Director Ward
suggested continuing this item to a date uncertain, and they would re-notice for a date
when they would have a-quorum.

MOTION: Board Member Stafsholt moved to CONTINUE this item to a date uncertain.
Board Member Armstrong seconded the motion.

VOTE:The motion passed with the unanimous consent of the Board.
2. ADJOURN

MOTION: Board Member Franklin moved to ADJOURN. Board Member Wilson
seconded the motion.

VOTE: The motion passed with the unanimous consent of the Board.

13



Board of Adjustment Meeting
November 7, 2023

The Board of Adjustment Meeting adjourned at approximately 6:19 p.m.

Approved by

Ruth Gezelius, Board of Adjustment Chair

14





